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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA
INDIANAPOLIS DIVISION

CHRISTIN M. LONG, individually and
on behalf of all others similarly situated,
Case No. 1:16-cv-02399

Plaintiff,
V. CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
ITT EDUCATIONAL SERVICES, : JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
INC. :

Defendant.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Christin Long (“Plaintiff”), on behalf of herself and all similarly situated
persons, alleges as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. On September 6, 2016, ITT Educational Services, Inc. (“ITT” or
“Defendant”) abruptly closed the doors of approximately 130 campuses in 38 states without
advance warning to its employees, immediately leaving more than 8,000 workers unemployed.
While ITT largely concealed this information from its employees, it was reasonably foreseeable
to ITT that such an outcome was inevitable. Indeed, ITT’s ability to participate in federal student
aid has been in question and conditional since August 2014. ITT has had reason to know that its
accreditation has been in jeopardy at least as early as April 2016.

2. This action is brought as a result of Defendant’s failure to provide its workers

with the notification required under the federal Worker Adjustment and Retraining

H0057459.



Case 1:16-cv-02399-WTL-DKL Document1 Filed 09/07/16 Page 2 of 15 PagelD #: 2

Notification Act, 29 U.S.C. § 2101, et seq. (the “WARN Act”), and to recover appropriate
relief to remedy this violation.

3. Through this action, Plaintiff and other similarly situated Class Members seek
damages in the amount of sixty (60) days’ pay and benefits, by reason of Defendant's
violation of the WARN Act. Plaintiff and Class Members were employees of Defendant for
purposes of the WARN Act, and were terminated as part of a mass layoff and/or plant
closings ordered by Defendant. Defendant violated federal law by failing to give Plaintiff
and other similarly situated employees of ITT sixty (60) days advance notice as required by

law.

THE PARTIES

4. Plaintiff Christin Long is a former ITT employee who worked at ITT’s
Strongsville, Ohio location that closed on September 6, 2016. On that day, Plaintiff received an
e-mail informing her that her job with ITT has been terminated. A copy of the redacted
termination e-mail is attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” As a result of Defendant’s violations of the
WARN Act and as set forth in greater detail below, Plaintiff has been injured.

5. Defendant ITT Educational Services, Inc. (NYSE: ESI) is a publicly traded
corporation incorporated under the laws of the state of Delaware with a principal place of
business located at 13000 North Meridian Street, Carmel, Indiana 46032-1404. ITT owned and
operated ITT Technical Institute (often shortened to ITT Tech), which was a for-profit technical

institute operating more than 130 campuses in 38 states across the United States.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. This Court has federal question subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8

1331, as this case is being brought under the WARN Act, 29 U.S.C. 8§ 2101, et seq.
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7. The Court also has supplemental jurisdiction over the state law claims asserted
herein, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367.

8. Venue is proper in this District because ITT resides in this District; two ITT
facilities are located in this District at Indianapolis and Evansville; and a substantial part of the
events giving rise to Plaintiff’s claims occurred in this District.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

A. ITT and ITT Technical Institutes

9. Defendant ITT owned and operated for-profit higher education institutions under
the name ITT Technical Institute. There were approximately 130 ITT Technical Institute

campuses in 38 states. An image of an ITT Technical Institute campus is depicted below:

. ..

10. Approximately 35,000 students were enrolled at ITT Technical Institute locations

for the quarter starting September 2016.

! http://www.latimes.com/business/la-fi-itt-tech-20160906-snap-story.html (last visited Sept. 7,
2016).
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11. In September 2016, ITT employed more than 8,000 people at its various ITT
Technical Institute campuses.” Of those, there were approximately 4,100 full-time and 4,300
part-time ITT Technical Institute instructors at the end of 2015.3

12. Plaintiff Long was a campus director at ITT’s location in Strongsville, Ohio.

B. The Demise of ITT

13.  Notwithstanding the lack of any forewarning to its employees, ITT had been
aware for some time that it would not be financially viable for its schools to continue operating.

14.  On August 19, 2014, ITT was cited by the U.S. Department of Education (DOE)
for submitting its annual compliance audits and audited financial statements late.*

15.  As aresult of this late submission, in August 2014, the DOE required ITT to post
an irrevocable, five-year Letter of Credit in the amount of $79,707,879.°

16.  Since the August 2014 citation, the DOE has been monitoring ITT’s operations
and finances and monitoring civil litigation filed against ITT by federal and state law
enforcement agencies.®

17.  Beginning in October 2014, the DOE required ITT’s schools to participate in
federal student aid programs authorized by Title IV of the Higher Education Act’ under a

Provisional Program Participation Agreement (PPPA) for three award years.?

2 http://www.ittesi.com/2016-09-06-1TT-Educational-Services-Inc-to-Cease-Operations-at-all-

ITT-Technical-Institutes-Following-Federal-Actions (last visited Sept. 7, 2016).

® http://ww.chicagotribune.com/business/ct-itt-tech-shuts-down-0907-biz-20160906-story.html
(last visited Sept. 6, 2016).

* http://www2.ed.gov/documents/press-releases/itt-letter-08252016.pdf (last visited Sept. 7,
2016).

> 1d.

°1d.

” The programs authorized under Title IV are the primary source of federal student aid. Title IV
programs include Federal Family Education Loans, Direct Loans, Federal Perkins Loans, Federal
Pell Grants, Academic Competitiveness Grants, National SMART Grants, Federal Supplemental
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18. ITT received a Show-Cause Directive Letter dated April 20, 2016 from ITT’s
accreditor, the Accrediting Counsel for Independent Colleges and Schools (ACICS) directing
ITT to show cause why ACICS’s grant of accreditation to ITT schools operating under the
Indianapolis, Indiana and Spokane Valley, Washington Office of Postsecondary Education
Identification Numbers (OPEIDs) should not be withdrawn or otherwise conditioned.’

19. By letter on June 6, 2016, the DOE required ITT to increase its surety from
$79,707,879 to $123,646,182.1° The DOE permitted ITT to provide the increased surety in three
equal installments on July 20, 2016; September 30, 2016; and November 30, 2016.*

20.  On June 24, 2016, the National Advisory Council on Institutional Quality and
Integrity (NACIQI) recommended to the DOE that it not re-recognize ITT’s accreditation
agency.'? If the DOE agreed with the NACIQI’s recommendation, ITT would need to find a new
accreditation agency to remain eligible for Title IV federal student aid programs.®

21. In a letter to shareholders dated June 30, 2016, ITT announced it was cutting back
on its recruiting budget, and it expected the move to result in a decline in enrollment at its
campuses.™

22.  On August 4, 2016, ACICS held the show-cause hearing imposed on ITT schools

operating under the Indianapolis, Indiana and Spokane Valley, Washington OPEIDs.*> ACICS

Educational Opportunity Grants, and Federal Work-Study.
http://federalstudentaid.ed.gov/site/front2back/programs/programs/fb_03 01 _0030.htm (last
visited Sept. 7, 2016).

8 http:/mwwz2.ed.gov/documents/press-releases/itt-letter-08252016.pdf (last visited Sept. 7,
2016).

’1d.

9q.

1.

2 4.

Bd.

% http://www.pe.com/articles/college-810465-students-campuses.html  (last visited Sept. 6,
2016).
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continued both institutions on show cause after ITT submitted the information requested by
ACICS and participated in the hearing.*

23. Based on ACICS’s determination, the DOE determined ITT had “failed to ‘meet
the requirements established’ by its accreditor, as required by [ITT’s] PPPA.”Y

24.  Based on these facts, in a letter dated August 25, 2016, the DOE required an
increased surety from ITT in the amount of $247,292,364 in order to maintain ITT’s certification
to participate in Title IV federal student aid programs.*® At that time, the DOE held a
$94,353,980 surety from ITT.™® The DOE letter required ITT to post the additional $152,938,654
within thirty days of August 25, 2016.%

25.  The August 25, 2016 letter also advised ITT it would not be permitted to enroll
new students under Title IV federal student aid programs.?

26.  Also in the August 25, 2016 letter, the DOE imposed additional methods of
payment requirements, notification requirements for oversight or financial events, reporting
requirements, and operation requirements in order to maintain ITT’s certification to participate in
Title IV federal student aid programs.?

27.  The DOE advised ITT in the August 25, 2016 letter that “the failure to meet these

standards will result in the referral of this matter . . . for administrative action, including the

> http://Iwww2.ed.gov/documents/press-releases/itt-letter-08252016.pdf (last visited Sept. 7,
2016).

4.

4.

¥d.

4.

21d.

211d.; http://blog.ed.gov/2016/08/increased-oversight-of-itt-and-the-impact-on-
students/comment-page-1/#comments (last visited Sept. 7, 2016).

22 http://www2.ed.gov/documents/press-releases/itt-letter-08252016.pdf (last visited Sept. 7,
2016).
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potential revocation of the PPPAs for the [Indianapolis, Indiana and Spokane Valley,
Washington] OPEIDs.”?

28.  The DOE required ITT to return a signed copy of the August 25, 2016 letter to the
DOE acknowledging and agreeing to the conditions imposed in the letter no later than noon on
September 6, 2016.%

29.  Upon information and belief, ITT management assured students and others that
these ongoing issues with the DOE would not lead to the closure of ITT.

30.  On August 30, 2016, ITT stopped enrolling new students at all of its campuses.®

31.  The Defendant’s advance knowledge of ITT’s deteriorating financial situation is
also evidenced by student knowledge of the dire straits. According to a student quoted in one
news report, “Two quarters ago there were rumors about the school having problems, but they

told us that anyone who was already a student would be allowed to finish[.]"?®

32. In addition, enrollment at for-profit higher education institutions reportedly has
dropped nearly 50 percent in the past six years, putting a strain on the finances of many schools.
ITT acknowledged it expected decreased enrollment at its campuses in a letter to shareholders in
June 2016.7

33.  Notwithstanding its ongoing turmoil with the DOE, ITT continued to operate and
enroll new students. As illustrated above, ITT’s demise was a gradual process that occurred over

the course of several years.

2 d.
*1d.
2 http://gizmodo.com/rest-in-peace-itt-tech-you-bastards-1785946020 (last visited Sept. 7,
2016).
28 http://www.latimes.com/business/la-fi-itt-tech-20160906-snap-story.html (last visited Sept. 7,
2016).
27 http://www.pe.com/articles/college-810465-students-campuses.html  (last visited Sept. 7,
2016).
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C. The Closure of the Facilities on September 6, 2016

34.  Neither Plaintiff nor Class Members received any advance notice or warning that
the ITT was closing its facilities. An email sent to employees by ITT Tech CEO Kevin Monday
on Friday, September 2, 2016 told employees, “Labor Day gives us a time to pause and spend
time with our family . . . . As we close out the end of our June quarter, we’d like to extend that

time by giving all employees Tuesday, September 6th off as an extra comp holiday.”?®

35.  On Tuesday morning, September 6, 2016, while ITT employees were off enjoying
their supposed Labor Day Weekend extended vacation and paid day off, ITT employees received
a letter with a subject line reading “Termination of Employment” via email. See Exhibit A.

36.  Indeed, one former employee identified that “People were blowing money all

weekend, not knowing they were fired . . . . That’s ruffled some feathers.”?

37.  The termination letter informed employees, “It has become necessary to
permanently eliminate your position due to a significant and unforeseen business circumstance
resulting in a company-wide reorganization to cease operations and close the business, including
the location at which you work.”

38.  Citing the DOE’s August 25, 2016 conditions and ITT’s determination it is
“unable to meet” those conditions, ITT’s termination was effective September 6, 2016
“(‘Termination Date’),” the same date the letter was remitted to the employees.

39.  The letter further provided that employees “Final Pay” would encompass only
“work performed through your Termination Date” plus “payment for vacation days accrued

through the[] Termination Date that have not been used” and that “[a]ll medical, dental, vision,

28

. http://gizmodo.com/itt-is-officially-closing-1786243058 (last visited Sept. 7, 2016).

http://www.wsj.com/articles/itt-employees-sue-over-sudden-mass-layoff-1473199006  (last
visited Sept. 7, 2016).
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and Flexible Spending Account coverage will end September 6, 2016.” Unused sick time was

forfeited and not paid out to employees.

40.  Employees were designated several short, two to three hour windows in the three
days following the Termination Date in which the employees would be permitted to reenter their
work location to retrieve personal property.

41.  On the same day, September 6, 2016, ITT released a public press release stating
ITT was immediately “discontinue[ing] academic operations at all of its ITT Technical Institutes
permanently” and “eliminate[ing] the positions of the overwhelming majority of our more than

8,000 employees.”30

42.  In the press release, ITT acknowledged, “more than 8,000 employees will be

negatively affected” and that “[m]ore than 8,000 ITT Tech employees are now without a job —

employees who exhibited the utmost dedication in serving our students.”*!

D. Defendant’s Violations of the WARN Act

43.  Plaintiff and those she seeks to represent herein were discharged without cause on
their part on or about September 6, 2016, as the reasonably foreseeable consequence of the mass
layoff or plant closing ordered by Defendant, and are "affected employees™ within the meaning
of 29 U.S.C. § 2101(a)(5).

44.  Plaintiff brings this action on her own behalf, pursuant to the WARN Act, and on
behalf of all other similarly situated employees and former employees whose employment was

terminated on or about September 6, 2016, and within 30 days of that date.

0 http://www.ittesi.com/2016-09-06-1TT-Educational-Services-Inc-to-Cease-Operations-at-all-

éTT-TechnicaI-Institutes-FoIIowing-FederaI-Actions (last visited Sept. 7, 2016).
1
Id.
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45. Defendant terminated Plaintiff’s employment as part of a mass layoff or plant
closing as defined by 29 U.S.C. § 2101, for which Plaintiff was entitled to receive sixty (60)
days advance written notice under the WARN Act.

46.  Defendant did not give Plaintiff or any Class Member the statutorily required
sixty (60) day notice of the mass layoff or termination in violation of the WARN Act.

47.  Plaintiff and Class members were discharged by Defendant without cause on
their part, and are "affected employee(s)" within the meaning of the WARN Act 29 U.S.C. §
2101(a)(5).

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

48.  Plaintiff brings this class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(a),
(b)(1) and (3) and the WARN Act, 29 U.S.C. § 2104(a)(5).
49.  Plaintiff brings this action for herself and on behalf of a class of all similarly
situated employees. Plaintiff seeks to certify a class (the “Class”) defined as follows:
All former employees of ITT Educational Services, Inc. who were
terminated from their employment at ITT Technical Institute or

other ITT locations without receiving sixty (60) days written notice
of a mass layoff before the date of their termination.

50.  Excluded from the Class are ITT, the legal representatives, heirs, successors and
assigns of any excluded person, and members of the federal judiciary.

51.  Numerosity: Upon information and belief, Plaintiff estimates that the Class
comprises at least eight thousand (8,000) Class Members, making the Class so numerous that
joinder of all Class Members is impracticable. The members of the Class can be identified and
located using information contained in the Defendant’s human resources records.

52. Commonality/Predominance: There are common questions of law and/or fact

common to the Class that predominate over any questions affecting only individual Class
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Members. The questions of law and fact common to the Class arising from Defendant’s actions
include, but are not limited to, the following:
a. Whether the provisions of the WARN Act apply;
b. Whether Plaintiff and Class Members are “affected employees” as defined by
the WARN Act;
c. Whether the employee terminations by ITT on September 6, 2016 constitute a
“termination” and/or “mass layoff” under the WARN Act;
d. Whether ITT failed to provide the notice(s) required by the WARN Act (29
U.S.C. § 2102(b));
e. Whether Defendant can avail itself of any of the provisions of the WARN Act
which permit lesser periods of notice;
f. The appropriate formulae to measure damages under the WARN Act (29
U.S.C. § 2104(a)(2)); and
g. The appropriate definitions and formulae to measure payments to potentially
offset damages under the WARN Act (29 U.S.C. § 2104(a)(2)).
53.  Typicality: Plaintiff’s claims are typical of all Class Members. Plaintiff and
Class Members were subjected to the same kind of unlawful conduct, namely that they were
involuntarily terminated without adequate notice under the WARN Act on September 6, 2016.
Furthermore, the claims of Plaintiff and the Class members are based on the same legal theories
and questions of law and fact pursuant to the WARN Act.
54.  Superiority: A class action here is superior to other available methods for fair
and efficient adjudication of the controversy. Class action treatment will allow a large number of

similarly situated individuals to simultaneously pursue their common claims in a single forum in
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an efficient manner, without unnecessary duplication of effort and expense that would be
required if numerous individual actions were pursued. However, the affected employees must
opt-in to this litigation so that the right to damages can be determined and quantum of damages
can be calculated by the court.

55.  Adequacy: Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s counsel will fairly and adequately protect the
interests of the Class. Plaintiff’s interests do not conflict with the interests of the Class, and
Plaintiff intends to prosecute this action vigorously.

56.  Plaintiff has retained experienced counsel qualified in class action litigation and
counsel are competent to assert the interests of the Class. Counsel for Plaintiff have extensive
experience successfully representing plaintiffs in complex class action litigation across the
country.

57.  The unlawful acts of Defendant, as alleged herein, constitute a course of conduct
common to Plaintiff and each Class Member. Prosecution of separate actions by individual Class
Members would create a risk of inconsistent of varying adjudications which would establish
incompatible standards of conduct for Defendant and/or substantially impair or impede the
ability of the individual Class Members to protect their interests.

58.  Upon information and belief, Defendant has acted or refused to act on grounds
generally applicable to the Class.

59.  Further, class action treatment is authorized and appropriate under the WARN
Act, 29 U.S.C. § 2104(a)(5), which clearly provides that a plaintiff seeking to enforce liabilities
under that statute may sue either on behalf of his or herself, for other persons similarly situated,

or both.
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VIOLATIONS OF THE UNITEDCS(')I'L/Z\¥1E_SI WORKER ADJUSTMENT AND
RETRAINING NOTIFICATION ACT, 29 U.S.C. 88 2101, et seq. (“WARN ACT”)

60.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in the preceding paragraphs.

61. At all times material herein, Plaintiff, and similarly situated persons, have been
entitled to the rights, protections, and benefits provided under the WARN Act, 29 U.S.C. § 2101
et. seq. Plaintiff and members of the Class are "affected employees"” of Defendant within the
meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 2101(a)(5).

62.  Atall relevant times, ITT was an "employer™ as that term is defined in 29-U.S.C.
8 210l(a)(l) and 20 C.F.R. 8 639.3(a), and ITT continued to operate as a business until it
implemented and announced a mass layoff or plant closing at the Facilities. Defendant
employed more than 100 employees who in the aggregate worked at least 4,000 hours per week
exclusive of hours of overtime within the United States.

63.  On or about September 6, 2016, Defendant ordered a "mass layoff" or "plant
closing” of the Facilities, as those terms are defined in 29 U.S.C. § 2101(a)(2),(3).

64.  Plaintiff is informed and believes—and thereon alleges—that the mass layoff or
plant closing at the Facilities resulted in "employment losses,” as that term is defined by 29
U.S.C. § 210I(a)(2) for at least 50 of Defendants’ employees as well as 33% of Defendant’s
workforce at each of the Facilities, excluding part-time employees as that term is defined by 29
U.S.C. § 2101(a)(8).

65.  Plaintiff and each Class Member were discharged by Defendant without cause on
their part.

66.  Defendant failed to give Plaintiff Class Members written notice that complied

with the requirements of the WARN Act.
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67.  Plaintiff and each of the other Class members are "aggrieved employees” of
Defendant, as that term is defined in 29 U.S.C. §2104(a)(7).

68.  Defendant failed to pay (and continues to fail to pay) Plaintiff and Class
Members their respective wages, salary, commissions, bonuses, accrued holiday pay and
accrued vacation pay for 60 days following notice of their terminations and failed to pay accrued
retirement benefits, for 60 days following notice of their respective terminations. Plaintiff has
been injured as a result of these WARN Act violations.

69. Defendant is also liable to Plaintiff for reasonable attorneys’ fees under 29 U.S.C.
8 2104.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff on behalf of herself and all members of the Class, request the
following:

A. That the Court determines that this action may be maintained as a class action
under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23;

B. That undersigned counsel is appointed as class counsel;

C. That Defendant is found to have violated the provisions of the WARN Act as to
Plaintiff and the Class;

D. For an award of monetary damages consistent with the provisions of the WARN
Act;

E. For an award of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 2104
and/or other applicable law; and

F. For such other and further relief, in law or equity, as this Court may deem

appropriate and just.

HO0057459. 14
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff hereby requests trial by jury of all issues triable by jury pursuant to FED. R. Civ.

p. 38.

Dated: September 7, 2016
Respectfully submitted,

[s/ Lynn A. Toops

Irwin B. Levin (Attorney No. 8786-49)

Richard E. Shevitz (Attorney No. 12007-49)

Lynn A. Toops (Attorney No. 26386-49)

COHEN & MALAD, LLP

One Indiana Square, Suite 1400

Indianapolis, IN 46204

Telephone: (317) 636-6481

Facsimile: (317) 636-2593

Email: Itoops@cohenandmalad.com
ilevin@cohenandmalad.com
rshevitz@cohenandmalad.com

CHIMICLES & TIKELLIS LLP

Benjamin F. Johns (PA Bar ID No. 201373)
Pro Hac Vice Forthcoming

Andrew W. Ferich (PA Bar ID No. 313696)
Pro Hac Vice Forthcoming

Jessica L. Titler (PA Bar ID No. 320618)
Pro Hac Vice Forthcoming

One Haverford Centre

361 West Lancaster Avenue

Haverford, PA 19041

Telephone: (610) 642-8500

Facsimile: (610) 649-3633

E-mail: BFJ@chimicles.com
AWF@chimicles.com
JT@chimicles.com

Counsel for Plaintiff and the Putative Class
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From: "ITT Educational Services, Inc." >
To: "Christin Long at 083" <
Subject: Important Information Regarding Your Employment at ITT Educational Services, Inc.

Date: Tue, Sep 6, 2016 7:30 AM

Having trouble viewing this email? Click here

DATE: September 6, 2016

TO: Christin Long
CEIEET T RN

Akron, OH 44319

FROM: Erica Bisch

SUBJECT: Termination of Employment

COPIES: Personnel File

It has become necessary to permanently eliminate your position due to a significant and unforeseen business
circumstance resulting in a company-wide reorganization to cease operations and close the business, including
the location at which you work. On August 25, 2016, without previous notice, the Department of Education
(the “ED”) notified ITT Educational Services, Inc. (the “Company”) that it is required to meet certain
conditions the Company has now determined it is unable to meet. As a result, your employment is being
terminated effective September 6, 2016 (“Termination Date™). This notice is being given as soon as it was
practicable and there are no bumping rights associated with this elimination.

This memorandum contains important information with respect to the termination of your employment and the
post-employment payments and benefits to which you may be entitled so please read it carefully.

a) Final Pay. You will receive your final paycheck for work performed through your Termination Date. Your
most recent paycheck covers the period of the two weeks ending September 4, 2016, as well as September 5 and
September 6, 2016, your Termination Date. If you do not have direct deposit and have a home address on
record with the company in California, Colorado, Illinois, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevada,
Oregon, Texas and Utah, your final paycheck will be sent to your home address. If you do not have direct
deposit and live in another state, you final paycheck will be sent to the campus for you to pick up.

1
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b)_Vacation Pay. The final paychecks of employees with accrued but unused vacation days include payment for
vacation days accrued through their Termination Date that have not been used.

c) Retirement Benefits. Employees who participate in the ESI Pension Plan and the ESI 401(k) Plan will be
100% vested in the plan(s) in which they participate. Click on the link in this email to access our Benefit Status
Upon Separation notification that includes contact information for further details.

d)_Unemployment Compensation. You will be eligible to apply for unemployment compensation the day
following your Termination Date.

e) Continued Medical Benefits. All medical, dental, vision and Flexible Spending Account coverage will end
September 6, 2016. You may use this letter as evidence of termination of your benefits as you consider other
coverage options.

You may be eligible to continue medical benefits pursuant to the COBRA Act. COBRA questions should be
directed to third party administrator Chard Snyder’s Customer Service team at_1-888-993-4646.

You may purchase health insurance through the Health Insurance Marketplace. Your coverage may start the
first day of the month after you lose your insurance. The Marketplace can help you evaluate your coverage
options, including your eligibility for coverage through the Marketplace and its cost. In the Marketplace, you
could be eligible for a tax credit that lowers your monthly premiums and cost-sharing reductions (amounts that
lower your out-of-pocket costs for deductibles, coinsurance, and copayments). Through the Marketplace you’ll
also learn if you qualify for free or low-cost coverage from Medicaid or the Children’s Health Insurance
Program (CHIP).

You have 60 days from the time you lose your job-based coverage to enroll in the Marketplace. After 60 days
your special enrollment period ends and you may not be able to enroll until the next open enrollment period. To
find out more about enrolling in the Marketplace, such as when the next open enrollment period will be and
what you need to know about qualifying events and special enrollment periods, visit www.HealthCare.gov.

Obtaining Your Personal Property. You may collect your personal property from your work location. Your
designated time is 9-11 a.m. or 3-5 p.m. Thursday, September 8, 2016, or 11 a.m.-2 p.m. Friday, September 9,
2016. Enter and exit through the front door.

Returning Company Property. You must return to ITT/ESI all ITT/ESI property, including, but not limited
to, textbooks, equipment, licenses, cell phones, credit cards, and keys. Please return company property at your
work location within your designated hours noted above.

Submitting Expenses for Reimbursement. You may submit legitimate, documented business expenses for
reimbursement. Submit reimbursement requests with original receipts at your work location within your
designated hours noted above. Reimbursement requests must include the purpose of each expense.

You are personally and solely responsible for paying all charges to your American Express Corporate credit
card account with respect to any American Express Corporate credit card issued to you in conjunction with your
ITT/ESI employment. You must pay any outstanding charges in full on or before the due date, failing

which, ITT/ESI may deduct any balance due on your American Express Corporate credit card account from
any pending business expense reimbursement, if you fail to pay such balance when due, in accordance with

2
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local law.

Previous Job Elimination Notices. You may have received previous communications about planned
terminations of employment. Please be advised that this document supersedes and replaces any such previous
communications.

We realize that this will be a difficult time for you; however, we urge you to direct your attention and energies
to your future.

If the address on this letter is not your current address, please email your current address to
benefitquestions@ittesi.com.

> Click on this link for information about benefit status upon separation and other questions.

Thank you for your efforts and contributions in working for ITT/ESI, and I wish you well in your future
endeavors. If you have any questions, please contact Human Resources Partner James Anders or Helena
Masters at (317) 706-9388 or, for the Online division, HR Generalist Patty Beck at (317) 324-9815.

Copyright © 2016 ITT Technical Institute. All Rights Reserved
9511 Angola Ct., Indianapolis, IN 46268
"ITT" is a registered mark of and is used under license granted by ITT Manufacturing Enterprises, LLC.

You may unsubscribe from our email communications by clicking_here.
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United States District Court

for the
Southern District of Indiana
Indianapolis Division

CHRISTIN M. LONG, on behalf of herself
and all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff,
VS. Case No: 1:16-cv-02399

ITT EDUCATIONAL SERVICES, INC.,

N N N N N N N N N N

Defendant,

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

TO: (Defendant name and address)

ITT Educational Services, Inc.
c/o CT Corporation System,
Registered Agent

150 West Market Street, Suite 800
Indianapolis, IN 46204

A lawsuit has been filed against you. Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting
the day you received it) C or 60 days if you are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or
employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) C you must serve on the plaintiff an
answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer
or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff=s attorney, whose name and address are:

Irwin B. Levin

Richard E. Shevitz

Lynn A. Toops

Cohen & Malad LLP

One Indiana Square, Suite 1400
Indianapolis, IN 46204

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the

complaint. You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date: September 7, 2016

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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Civil Action Number: 1:16-cv-02399

PROOF OF SERVICE
(this section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4(1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

[ I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

[ ] 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

[ 1 served the summons on (name of individual)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
[ 1 1 returned the summons unexecuted because
[ ] Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s Signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc.





